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JOSEPH KEMP’S OBITUARY IN THE SCOTTISH BAPTIST YEARBOOK
Mr Kemp was born in Hull in the year 1872, and, like many other successful men, had to "bear the yoke in his youth." Not long after his conversion he began to teach in the Sunday School and to preach in the open air.  Realising, however, that he must devote his life to the service of Christ, he undertook a course of training at the Bible Training Institute of Glasgow, the cost of which was defrayed by a friend in Hull.  It was during his sojourn in Glasgow that he was baptised by the Rev. Edward Last in Cambridge Street Baptist Church. After gaining the diploma of the Bible Training Institute he was engaged in evangelistic work in Motherwell under Mr John Colville, M.P., and subsequently in Ayrshire along with the late Mr P. T. M'Rostie under the auspices of the Ayrshire Christian Union.

In the spring of 1897 he became pastor of the church at Kelso, where he met the lady who became his wife and who shared his ministry in several lands, and has been a helpmeet in the truest sense of the word. After a ministry of eighteen months in Kelso he was called to Hawick, where he laboured for about four years, and where his work was signally blessed.

But I think it can be said without any exaggeration that his greatest work was accomplished at Charlotte Chapel, Edinburgh, where he ministered for fourteen years, and raised a somewhat forlorn cause to become the church with the highest membership of the Denomination in Scotland.

He had the gift of the evangelist and made the evangelistic note a chief feature of his ministry. He was also a teacher, and on the Thursday evenings his Bible lectures proved an attraction to many not associated with his own church. During the years 1905 and 1907 a remarkable wave of blessing passed over the church. Literally hundreds were converted to Christ, in some cases whole families. Numerous baptismal services followed, and the membership of the church steadily rose.

In the course of time the building became too small for the increasing congregation, and as the fabric was old the church decided to erect a new building on the site with suitable accommodation. During building operations the services were held in the large Synod Hall, where many were attracted by Mr Kemp's preaching. The new building was opened for worship in 1912 at a cost of £8000. About three years later Mr Kemp received a call from Calvary Baptist Church, New York, which he decided to accept.  The membership of the church at that time was eight hundred. After a few years in New York he accepted a call from the Tabernacle, Auckland, New Zealand, where he laboured with great acceptance until his death. His ministry in Auckland brought quickening to every department of the church. Realising the need of an Institute in New Zealand for training of home and foreign missionaries he set the project on foot, and by the aid of several friends secured funds to erect the Bible Institute of New Zealand, of which he was made the Dean. Two years ago he was elected President of the Baptist Union of New Zealand. His death is a severe loss not only to the Denomination but to the Christian Church. Men of his type are rare. He was a fearless preacher, a man of passion for the welfare of men, and of intense devotion to Christ, and was willing to wear himself out in the service of God and of men.

�  Scottish Baptist Yearbook, 1934, pp. 147-8.





